

1 House BILL NO. 771
2 INTRODUCED BY Nussauer Brand

3
4 A BILL FOR AN ACT ENTITLED: "AN ACT TO DESIGNATE THE
5 BOULDER RIVER SCHOOL AND HOSPITAL AND THE EASTMONT TRAINING
6 CENTER AS INTENSIVE RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES FOR THE CARE AND
7 TREATMENT OF PERSONS SUFFERING FROM DEVELOPMENTAL
8 DISABILITIES; TO TRANSFER THE ADMINISTRATION OF THOSE
9 FACILITIES FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF INSTITUTIONS TO THE
10 DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL AND REHABILITATION SERVICES; TO AMEND
11 SECTIONS 71-210, 71-2403, 80-1403, 80-1601, 82A-801.1, AND
12 82A-1901.1, R.C.M. 1947; AND TO REPEAL SECTIONS 80-2310 AND
13 80-2604, R.C.M. 1947."

14
15 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA:

16 Section 1. Section 71-210, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
17 read as follows:

18 "71-210. Authority and activities of the state
19 department. (1) The state department has authority over and
20 administration or supervision of all the purposes and
21 operations as set forth under Title 71. The state department
22 shall:

23 (a) ~~Administer~~ administer or supervise all forms of
24 public assistance, child protection, and child welfare,
25 including the provision of medical care payments in behalf

1 of recipients of public assistance;

2 (b) ~~Administer~~ administer or supervise all child
3 welfare activities, including importation and exportation of
4 children, licensing and supervising of private and local
5 child-caring agencies, and the care of dependent,
6 neglected, and delinquent children in foster family homes,
7 especially children placed for adoption or those of
8 illegitimate birth;

9 (c) ~~Give~~ give consultant service to private
10 institutions providing care for the needy, indigent,
11 handicapped, or dependent adults;

12 (d) ~~Develop~~ develop and cooperate with other state
13 agencies provisions for services to the blind, including the
14 prevention of blindness, the location of blind persons,
15 medical services for eye conditions, and vocational guidance
16 and training of the blind;

17 (e) ~~Provide~~ provide services in respect to
18 organization and supervise county departments of public
19 welfare and county boards of public welfare in the
20 administration of public welfare functions, and for
21 efficiency and economy;

22 (f) adopt rules for the admission, custody, transfer,
23 and release of residents of intensive residential facilities
24 established for the care and treatment of persons suffering
25 from developmental disabilities and under the administration

1 of the state department;

2 (g) adopt rules for the payment of per diem and
 3 ancillary charges for the care and treatment of persons in
 4 intensive residential facilities under the administration of
 5 the state department in the same manner and subject to the
 6 same restrictions and limitations as the department of
 7 institutions is subject to in adopting rules governing per
 8 diem and ancillary charge payments under Title 80, chapter
 9 16;

10 ~~†††(h) Assist~~ assist and cooperate with other state
 11 and federal departments, bureaus, agencies, and
 12 institutions, when so requested, by performing services in
 13 conformity with the purposes of this act; and

14 ~~†††(i) Administer~~ administer and supervise all federal
 15 funds allocated to this state and all state funds
 16 appropriated to this state department for the activities set
 17 forth in Title 71. The state department shall do all things
 18 necessary, in conformity with federal and state law, for the
 19 proper fulfillment of the purposes set forth in Title 71.

20 (2) The state department may:

21 (a) ~~Purchase~~ purchase, exchange, condemn, or receive
 22 by gift, either real or personal property which is necessary
 23 to carry out its functions under Title 71. Title to property
 24 obtained under this subsection shall be taken in the name of
 25 the state of Montana, for the use and benefit of the state

1 department.

2 (b) ~~Contract~~ contract with the federal government to
 3 carry out its functions under Title 71. The state department
 4 may do all things necessary in order to avail itself of
 5 federal aid and assistance."

6 Section 2. Section 71-2403, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 7 read as follows:

8 "71-2403. Responsibilities of department. The
 9 department shall:

10 (1) take cognizance of matters affecting the
 11 developmentally disabled citizens of the state;

12 (2) initiate a preventive developmental disabilities
 13 program which program shall include, but not be limited to,
 14 the implementation of developmental disabilities care, and
 15 treatment, and prevention, and research as can best be
 16 accomplished by community centered services. Every means
 17 shall be utilized to initiate and operate such the service
 18 program in cooperation with local agencies, under provisions
 19 of sections 71-2405 and 71-2407 of this act chapter;

20 (3) promote scientific and medical research
 21 investigations relative to the incidence, cause, prevention,
 22 and care of developmental disabilities;

23 (4) collect and disseminate information relating to
 24 developmental disabilities;

25 (5) prepare, with the advice of the advisory council,

1 created under section 71-2406, an annual comprehensive plan
 2 for the initiation and maintenance of developmental
 3 disabilities services in the state. Such ~~the~~ services shall
 4 include, but not be limited to, community comprehensive
 5 developmental disabilities services as referred to in
 6 section 71-2402.

7 (6) provide by ~~regulation rule~~ for the evaluation of
 8 persons who apply for services or persons admitted into a
 9 program at a developmental disability facility;

10 (7) provide state personnel to assist regional
 11 councils provided for in section 71-2407;

12 ~~(8) adopt rules for the admission, custody, transfer,~~
 13 ~~and release of residents of Boulder River school and~~
 14 ~~hospital and the Eastmont training center;~~

15 ~~(9) adopt rules for the payment of per diem and~~
 16 ~~ancillary charges for the care and treatment of residents of~~
 17 ~~Boulder River school and hospital and the Eastmont training~~
 18 ~~center in the same manner and subject to the same~~
 19 ~~restrictions and limitations as the department of~~
 20 ~~institutions is subject to in adopting rules governing per~~
 21 ~~diem and ancillary charge payments under Title 80, chapter~~
 22 ~~16;~~

23 ~~(10)~~ receive from agencies of the government of the
 24 United States and other agencies, persons or groups of
 25 persons, associations, firms, or corporations, grants of

1 money, receipts from fees, gifts, supplies, materials, and
 2 contributions to initiate and maintain developmental
 3 disabilities services within the state."

4 Section 3. There is a new R.C.M. section numbered
 5 71-2404.1 that reads as follows:

6 71-2404.1. Intensive residential facilities. The
 7 Boulder River school and hospital and the Eastmont training
 8 center are intensive residential facilities for the care and
 9 treatment of persons suffering from developmental
 10 disabilities and are under the administration of the
 11 department of social and rehabilitation services. Both of
 12 these facilities may admit, pursuant to any agreement
 13 entered into between Montana and another state for this
 14 purpose, nonresidents of Montana who suffer from
 15 developmental disabilities.

16 Section 4. Section 80-1403, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 17 read as follows:

18 "80-1403. Institutions in department. (1) The
 19 following institutions are in the department:

- 20 (a) Galen state hospital;
- 21 (b) Montana veterans' home;
- 22 (c) State prison;
- 23 (d) Montana children's center;
- 24 (e) Mountain View school;
- 25 (f) Pine Hills school;

1 ~~{g}~~--Boulder-river-school-and-hospital
 2 ~~{h}~~{g} Warm Springs state hospital;
 3 ~~{i}~~{b} Montana center for the aged;
 4 ~~{j}~~{i} Swan river youth forest camp; and
 5 ~~{k}~~--Eastmont-training-center
 6 ~~{j}~~{i}: Any any other institution which provides care
 7 and services for juvenile delinquents including but not
 8 limited to youth forest camps and juvenile reception and
 9 evaluation centers.
 10 (2) A state institution may not be moved,
 11 discontinued, or abandoned without prior consent of the
 12 legislative assembly."
 13 Section 5. Section 80-1601, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 14 read as follows:
 15 "80-1601. Institutions subject to per diem charge. The
 16 state department of institutions shall collect and process
 17 per diem payments for the care of residents in the following
 18 institutions and for the care of those persons in foster
 19 homes or group homes under provisions of the department:
 20 (1) Montana children's center;
 21 (2) Warm Springs state hospital;
 22 ~~{g}~~--Boulder-river-school-and-hospital
 23 ~~{4}~~{3} Galen state hospital;
 24 ~~{5}~~{4} Montana veterans' home; and
 25 ~~{6}~~{5} Montana center for the aged.

1 ~~{7}~~--Eastmont-training-center"
 2 Section 6. Section 82A-801.1, R.C.M. 1947, is amended
 3 to read as follows:
 4 "82A-801.1. Functions of department. The department
 5 and its units are responsible for the administration of laws
 6 relating to institutions, including, but not limited to,
 7 laws pertaining to:
 8 (1) District youth guidance homes (Title 10, chapter
 9 11);
 10 (2) Warm Springs state hospital (Title 38, chapter 1);
 11 (3) Examination and commitment of persons mentally
 12 deranged (Title 38, chapter 2);
 13 (4) Patient transfers (Title 38, chapter 3);
 14 (5) Examination of patients and voluntary admissions
 15 (Title 38, chapter 4);
 16 (6) Convalescent leave of patients (Title 38, chapter
 17 5);
 18 (7) Voluntary sterilizations (Title 69, chapter 64);
 19 (8) Juvenile facilities (Title 80, chapter 14);
 20 (9) Institutional industries (Title 80, chapter 15);
 21 (10) Payments for care of patients (Title 80, chapter
 22 16);
 23 (11) Galen state hospital (Title 80, chapter 17);
 24 (12) Montana veterans' home (Title 80, chapter 18);
 25 (13) State prison (Title 80, chapter 19);

1 (14) Montana childrens center (Title 80, chapter 21);
 2 (15) Mountain View school and Pine Hills school (Title
 3 80, chapter 22);
 4 ~~{16} Boulder river school and hospital (Title 80,~~
 5 ~~chapter 23);~~
 6 ~~{17} {16} Mental hygiene services and mental health~~
 7 ~~centers (Title 80, chapter 24);~~
 8 ~~{18} {17} Montana center for the aged (Title 80, chapter~~
 9 ~~25);~~
 10 ~~{19} Mental retardation programs (Title 80, chapter~~
 11 ~~26);~~
 12 ~~{20} {18} Probation, parole, and clemency (Title 94,~~
 13 ~~chapter 98); and~~
 14 ~~{21} {19} Alcohol and drug dependence (Title 80, chapter~~
 15 ~~27)."~~
 16 Section 7. Section 82A-1901.1, R.C.M. 1947, is amended
 17 to read as follows:
 18 "82A-1901.1. Functions of department. {1} The
 19 department and its units are responsible for administering
 20 laws pertaining to public assistance, including, but not
 21 limited to:
 22 {1} {a} Dependent and neglected children (Title 10,
 23 chapter 5);
 24 {2} {b} Child adoption agencies (Title 10, chapter 7);
 25 {3} {c} Day care facilities for children (Title 10,

1 chapter 8);
 2 ~~{4} {d}~~ Adoptions (Title 61, chapter 2);
 3 ~~{5} {e}~~ County poor (Title 71, chapter 1);
 4 ~~{6} {f}~~ Department's functions and county departments
 5 of public welfare (Title 71, chapter 2);
 6 ~~{7} {g}~~ General relief (Title 71, chapter 3);
 7 ~~{8} {h}~~ Old-age assistance (Title 71, chapter 4);
 8 ~~{9} {i}~~ Aid to dependent children (Title 71, chapter
 9 5);
 10 ~~{10} {j}~~ Aid to blind (Title 71, chapter 6);
 11 ~~{11} {k}~~ Child welfare (Title 71, chapter 7);
 12 ~~{12} {l}~~ Disabled persons (Title 71, chapter 12);
 13 ~~{13} {m}~~ Services to the blind (Title 71, chapter 14);
 14 ~~{14} {n}~~ Medical assistance (Title 71, chapter 15);
 15 ~~{15} {o}~~ Vocational rehabilitation and education (Title
 16 71, chapter 18);
 17 ~~{16} {p}~~ Veterans' welfare (Title 71, chapter 19); and
 18 ~~{17} {q}~~ Problems of aging (Title 71, chapter 20).
 19 {2} The department shall also administer the laws
 20 relating to the Boulder River school and hospital and the
 21 Eastmont training center."
 22 Section 8. Repealer. Sections 80-2310 and 80-2604,
 23 R.C.M. 1947, are repealed.

-End-

STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST NO. 504-77

FISCAL NOTE

Form BD-15

In compliance with a written request received February 14, 19 77, there is hereby submitted a Fiscal Note for House Bill 771 pursuant to Chapter 53, Laws of Montana, 1965 - Thirty-Ninth Legislative Assembly.

Background information used in developing this Fiscal Note is available from the Office of Budget and Program Planning, to members of the Legislature upon request.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED LEGISLATION:

Transfers the administration of Boulder River School and Hospital and Eastmont Training Center from the Department of Institutions to the Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services.

ASSUMPTIONS:

1. Funds requested in the Executive Budget would be appropriated to the Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services.
2. Each institution currently provides for its own centralized services; thus, support and management needs of the institutions can be met within current Social and Rehabilitation Services' structure.
3. No staff reductions in the central office of the Department of Institutions will occur.

FISCAL IMPACT:

It is impossible to provide a dollar estimate of the fiscal impact of the proposed legislation in the time allotted. It does appear, however, that substantial savings could result from accelerated movement of persons from these institutions into appropriate (and less costly) community-based programs. The Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services currently has responsibility for the development of community-based services for the developmentally disabled.

Richard L. Dancy for
BUDGET DIRECTOR

Office of Budget and Program Planning

Date: 2-18-77

Approved by Committee
on State Administration

HOUSE BILL NO. 771

INTRODUCED BY DUSSAULT, BRAND

A BILL FOR AN ACT ENTITLED: "AN ACT TO DESIGNATE THE BOULDER RIVER SCHOOL AND HOSPITAL AND THE EASTMONT TRAINING CENTER AS INTENSIVE RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES FOR THE CARE AND TREATMENT OF PERSONS SUFFERING FROM DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES; TO TRANSFER THE ADMINISTRATION OF THOSE FACILITIES FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF INSTITUTIONS TO THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL AND REHABILITATION SERVICES; TO AMEND SECTIONS 71-210, 71-2403, 80-1403, 80-1601, 82A-801.1, AND 82A-1901.1, R.C.M. 1947; AND TO REPEAL SECTIONS 80-2310 AND 80-2604, R.C.M. 1947; AND PROVIDING A DELAYED EFFECTIVE DATE."

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA:

Section 1. Section 71-210, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to read as follows:

"71-210. Authority and activities of the state department. (1) The state department has authority over and administration or supervision of all the purposes and operations as set forth under Title 71. The state department shall:

(a) ~~Administer~~ administer or supervise all forms of public assistance, child protection, and child welfare,

including the provision of medical care payments in behalf of recipients of public assistance;

(b) ~~Administer~~ administer or supervise all child welfare activities, including importation and exportation of children, licensing and supervising of private and local child-caring agencies, and the care of dependent, neglected, and delinquent children in foster family homes, especially children placed for adoption or those of illegitimate birth;

(c) ~~Give~~ give consultant service to private institutions providing care for the needy, indigent, handicapped, or dependent adults;

(d) ~~Develop~~ develop and cooperate with other state agencies provisions for services to the blind, including the prevention of blindness, the location of blind persons, medical services for eye conditions, and vocational guidance and training of the blind;

(e) ~~Provide~~ provide services in respect to organization and supervise county departments of public welfare and county boards of public welfare in the administration of public welfare functions, and for efficiency and economy;

(f) adopt rules for the admission, custody, transfer, and release of residents of intensive residential facilities established for the care and treatment of persons suffering

1 ~~from developmental disabilities and under the administration~~
 2 ~~of the state department;~~

3 ~~(c) adopt rules for the payment of per diem and~~
 4 ~~ancillary charges for the care and treatment of persons in~~
 5 ~~intensive residential facilities under the administration of~~
 6 ~~the state department in the same manner and subject to the~~
 7 ~~same restrictions and limitations as the department of~~
 8 ~~institutions is subject to in adopting rules governing per~~
 9 ~~diem and ancillary charge payments under Title 80, chapter~~
 10 ~~16;~~

11 ~~(f)(b) Assist assist~~ and cooperate with other state
 12 and federal departments, bureaus, agencies, and
 13 institutions, when so requested, by performing services in
 14 conformity with the purposes of this act; and

15 ~~(f)(i) Administer administer~~ and supervise all federal
 16 funds allocated to this state and all state funds
 17 appropriated to this state department for the activities set
 18 forth in Title 71. The state department shall do all things
 19 necessary, in conformity with federal and state law, for the
 20 proper fulfillment of the purposes set forth in Title 71.

21 (4) The state department may:

22 () ~~Purchase purchase,~~ exchange, condemn, or receive
 23 by gift, either real or personal property which is necessary
 24 to carry out its functions under Title 71. Title to property
 25 obtained under this subsection shall be taken in the name of

1 the state of Montana, for the use and benefit of the state
 2 department.

3 (b) ~~Contract contract~~ with the federal government to
 4 carry out its functions under Title 71. The state department
 5 may do all things necessary in order to avail itself of
 6 federal aid and assistance."

7 Section 2. Section 71-2403, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 8 read as follows:

9 "71-2403. Responsibilities of department. The
 10 department shall:

11 (1) take cognizance of matters affecting the
 12 developmentally disabled citizens of the state;

13 (2) initiate a preventive developmental disabilities
 14 program, which program shall include, but not be limited to,
 15 the implementation of developmental disabilities care, and
 16 treatment, and prevention, and research as can best be
 17 accomplished by community centered services. Every means
 18 shall be utilized to initiate and operate such the service
 19 program in cooperation with local agencies, under provisions
 20 of sections 71-2405 and 71-2407 of this act chapter;

21 (3) promote scientific and medical research
 22 investigations relative to the incidence, cause, prevention,
 23 and care of developmental disabilities;

24 (4) collect and disseminate information relating to
 25 developmental disabilities;

1 (5) prepare, with the advice of the advisory council
 2 created under section 71-2406, an annual comprehensive plan
 3 for the initiation and maintenance of developmental
 4 disabilities services in the state. Such ~~the~~ services shall
 5 include, but not be limited to, community comprehensive
 6 developmental disabilities services as referred to in
 7 section 71-2402~~a~~.

8 (6) provide by ~~regulation rule~~ for the evaluation of
 9 persons who apply for services, or persons admitted into a
 10 program at a developmental disability facility;

11 (7) provide state personnel to assist regional
 12 councils provided for in section 71-2407;

13 ~~(8) adopt rules for the admission, custody, transfer,
 14 and release of residents of Boulder River school and
 15 hospital and the Eastmont training center;~~

16 ~~(9) adopt rules for the payment of per diem and
 17 ancillary charges for the care and treatment of residents of
 18 Boulder River school and hospital and the Eastmont training
 19 center in the same manner and subject to the same
 20 restrictions and limitations as the department of
 21 institutions is subject to in adopting rules governing per
 22 diem and ancillary charge payments under Title 80, chapter
 23 16;~~

24 ~~(10) receive from agencies of the government of the
 25 United States and other agencies, persons or groups of~~

1 persons, associations, firms, or corporations, grants of
 2 money, receipts from fees, gifts, supplies, materials, and
 3 contributions to initiate and maintain developmental
 4 disabilities services within the state."

5 Section 3. There is a new R.C.M. section numbered
 6 71-2404.1 that reads as follows:

7 71-2404.1. Intensive residential facilities. The
 8 Boulder River school and hospital and the Eastmont training
 9 center are intensive residential facilities for the care and
 10 treatment of persons suffering from developmental
 11 disabilities and are under the administration of the
 12 department of social and rehabilitation services. Both of
 13 these facilities may admit, pursuant to any agreement
 14 entered into between Montana and another state for this
 15 purpose, nonresidents of Montana who suffer from
 16 developmental disabilities.

17 Section 4. Section 80-1403, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 18 read as follows:

19 "80-1403. Institutions in department. (1) The
 20 following institutions are in the department:

- 21 (a) Galen state hospital;
- 22 (b) Montana veterans' home;
- 23 (c) State prison;
- 24 (d) Montana children's center;
- 25 (e) Mountain View school;

1 (1) Pine Hills school;
 2 ~~(c)--Boulder-river-school-and-hospital~~
 3 ~~(h)(g)~~ Warm Springs state hospital;
 4 ~~(i)(h)~~ Montana center for the aged;
 5 ~~(j)(i)~~ Swan river youth forest camp; and
 6 ~~(k)--Eastmont-training-center~~
 7 ~~(l)(j)~~ Any ~~any~~ other institution which provides care
 8 and services for juvenile delinquents including but not
 9 limited to youth forest camps and juvenile reception and
 10 evaluation centers.
 11 (2) A state institution may not be moved,
 12 discontinued, or abandoned without prior consent of the
 13 legislative assembly."
 14 Section 5. Section 80-1601, R.C.M. 1947, is amended to
 15 read as follows:
 16 *80-1601. Institutions subject to per diem charge. The
 17 state department of institutions shall collect and process
 18 per diem payments for the care of residents in the following
 19 institutions and for the care of those persons in foster
 20 homes or group homes under provisions of the department:
 21 (1) Montana children's center;
 22 (2) Warm Springs state hospital;
 23 ~~(3)--Boulder-river-school-and-hospital~~
 24 ~~(4)(3)~~ Galen state hospital;
 25 ~~(5)(4)~~ Montana veterans' home; and

1 ~~(6)(5)~~ Montana center for the aged;
 2 ~~(7)--Eastmont-training-center"~~
 3 Section 6. Section 82A-801.1, R.C.M. 1947, is amended
 4 to read as follows:
 5 *82A-801.1. Functions of department. The department
 6 and its units are responsible for the administration of laws
 7 relating to institutions, including, but not limited to,
 8 laws pertaining to:
 9 (1) District youth guidance homes (Title 10, chapter
 10 11);
 11 (2) Warm Springs state hospital (Title 38, chapter 1);
 12 (3) Examination and commitment of persons mentally
 13 deranged (Title 38, chapter 2);
 14 (4) Patient transfers (Title 38, chapter 3);
 15 (5) Examination of patients and voluntary admissions
 16 (Title 38, chapter 4);
 17 (6) Convalescent leave of patients (Title 38, chapter
 18 5);
 19 (7) Voluntary sterilizations (Title 69, chapter 64);
 20 (8) Juvenile facilities (Title 80, chapter 14);
 21 (9) Institutional industries (Title 80, chapter 15);
 22 (10) Payments for care of patients (Title 80, chapter
 23 16);
 24 (11) Galen state hospital (Title 80, chapter 17);
 25 (12) Montana veterans' home (Title 80, chapter 18);

1 (13) State prison (Title 80, chapter 19);
 2 (14) Montana childrens center (Title 80, chapter 21);
 3 (15) Mountain View school and Pine Hills school (Title
 4 80, chapter 22);
 5 ~~(16) Boulder river school and hospital (Title 80,~~
 6 ~~chapter 23);~~
 7 ~~(17)(16)~~ Mental hygiene services and mental health
 8 centers (Title 80, chapter 24);
 9 ~~(18)(17)~~ Montana center for the aged (Title 80, chapter
 10 25);
 11 ~~(19) Mental retardation programs (Title 80, chapter~~
 12 ~~26);~~
 13 ~~(20)(18)~~ Probation, parole, and clemency (Title 94,
 14 chapter 98); and
 15 ~~(21)(19)~~ Alcohol and drug dependence (Title 80, chapter
 16 27)."
 17 Section 7. Section 82A-1901.1, R.C.M. 1947, is amended
 18 to read as follows:
 19 "82A-1901.1. Functions of department. 11 The
 20 department and its units are responsible for administering
 21 laws pertaining to public assistance, including, but not
 22 limited to:
 23 ~~(1)(a)~~ Dependent and neglected children (Title 10,
 24 chapter 5);
 25 ~~(2)(b)~~ Child adoption agencies (Title 10, chapter 7);

1 ~~(3)(c)~~ Day care facilities for children (Title 10,
 2 chapter 8);
 3 ~~(4)(d)~~ Adoptions (Title 61, chapter 2);
 4 ~~(5)(e)~~ County poor (Title 71, chapter 1);
 5 ~~(6)(f)~~ Department's functions and county departments
 6 of public welfare (Title 71, chapter 2);
 7 ~~(7)(g)~~ General relief (Title 71, chapter 3);
 8 ~~(8)(h)~~ Old-age assistance (Title 71, chapter 4);
 9 ~~(9)(i)~~ Aid to dependent children (Title 71, chapter
 10 5);
 11 ~~(10)(j)~~ Aid to blind (Title 71, chapter 6);
 12 ~~(11)(k)~~ Child welfare (Title 71, chapter 7);
 13 ~~(12)(l)~~ Disabled persons (Title 71, chapter 12);
 14 ~~(13)(m)~~ Services to the blind (Title 71, chapter 14);
 15 ~~(14)(n)~~ Medical assistance (Title 71, chapter 15);
 16 ~~(15)(o)~~ Vocational rehabilitation and education (Title
 17 71, chapter 18);
 18 ~~(16)(p)~~ Veterans' welfare (Title 71, chapter 19); and
 19 ~~(17)(q)~~ Problems of aging (Title 71, chapter 20).
 20 (2) The department shall also administer the laws
 21 relating to the Boulder River school and hospital and the
 22 Eastmont training center."
 23 SECTION 8. THERE IS A NEW R.C.M. SECTION THAT READS AS
 24 FOLLOWS:
 25 Applicable law -- receipt of federal funds. (1)

1 Sections 82A-116 through 82A-122 are applicable to this act.
2 (2) If the department of institutions or any of the
3 institutions transferred to the department of social and
4 rehabilitation services by this act have been designated by
5 legislative act or executive action as the sole or single
6 state agency for purposes of receiving federal funds the
7 department of social and rehabilitation services is
8 substituted therefore.

9 SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. THIS ACT IS EFFECTIVE UPON
10 THE DATE THE GOVERNOR SIGNS AN EXECUTIVE ORDER IMPLEMENTING
11 IT OR ON JULY 1, 1978, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST. THE GOVERNOR
12 SHALL FILE THE EXECUTIVE ORDER WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE
13 ON THE DAY THE ORDER IS SIGNED. THE SECRETARY OF STATE SHALL
14 FILE AND RECORD THE ORDER AND SEND A COPY OF THE ORDER TO
15 EACH ADDRESSEE ON HIS OFFICIAL MAILING LIST FOR THE REVISED
16 CODES OF MONTANA AND TO EACH ADDRESSEE ON THE MAILING LIST
17 OF THE PUBLISHER OF THE REVISED CODES OF MONTANA.

18 Section 10. Repealer. Sections 80-2310 and 80-2604,
19 R.C.M. 1947, are repealed.

-End-